
 Agenda

Page 1

Licensing and Regulatory Committee

Time and Date
9.30 am on Tuesday, 11th September, 2018

Place
Diamond Rooms 1 and 2 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)

To agree the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 14 August 2018 and 
the Sub-Committee hearing held on 16 August 2018

4. Exclusion of Press and Public  

To consider whether to exclude the press and public for the items of private 
business for the reasons shown in the reports.

5. Outstanding Issues Report  

There are no outstanding issues to report.

6. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved  

Private Business

7. Reports of the Deputy Chief Executive of Place  

7.1    Poor Food Hygiene Conditions at a Coventry Restaurant  (Pages 7 - 20)

PLEASE NOTE: The first taxi applicant has been requested to attend 
Committee at 9.40am

8. Applications for the Grant/Suitability to hold Hackney Carriage & Private 
Hire Drivers' Licences  

Reports of the Executive Director, Place on the following:
(Listing Officer: Mick Coggins – tel: 024 7683 2183) 

8.1     Review of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence  (Pages 21 - 62)

Public Document Pack



Page 2

8.2     Review of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence  (Pages 63 - 94)

8.3     Application for Grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence  (Pages   
     95 - 110)

8.4     Review of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence  (Pages 111 - 126)

8.5     Review of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence  (Pages 127 - 174)

9. Any other items of private business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved  

Martin Yardley, Deputy Chief Executive (Place), Council House Coventry

Monday, 3 September 2018

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Usha Patel 

Membership: Councillors J Birdi, R Brown, J Clifford, G Crookes, D Gannon, 
P Hetherton (Chair), B Kaur, D Kershaw, A Lucas, T Mayer, K Sandhu, R Thay, 
C Thomas (Deputy Chair) and S Walsh

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR if you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Usha Patel/Carolyn Sinclair 
Tel: 024 7683 3198/3166
Email: usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk or

  Carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk

mailto:usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:Carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk


– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Licensing and Regulatory Committee held at 9.30 am 

on Tuesday, 14 August 2018

Present:
Members: Councillor P Hetherton (Chair)

Councillor J Birdi
Councillor R Brown
Councillor J Clifford
Councillor G Crookes
Councillor A Lucas
Councillor K Sandhu
Councillor R Thay
Councillor C Thomas

Employees (by Directorate):
Place: D Cahalin-Heath, M Coggins, V Jon-Stevens, F Samuda, C 

Sinclair 

Apologies: Councillor D Gannon, B Kaur, D Kershaw, T Mayer and 
S Walsh 

Public Business

15. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

16. Minutes 

The minutes of the Committee meeting held on 26 June and Sub-Committee 
hearings held on 15 June, 27 June and 5 July 2018 were signed as true records. 

17. Exclusion of Press and Public 

RESOLVED that, under Section 1004(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the item of business indicated 
below on the grounds that those items involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information, as defined in Schedule 12A of that Act, in particular 
those paragraphs of Part 1 of the Schedule as indicated: 

Minute 
No. 

Subject Relevant Paragraph of 
Part 1 of Schedule 
12A

21 Application for Grant of a Private Hire 
Operator’s Licence 

1, 3

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

18. Gambling Act 2005 - Revised Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2022 

The Committee considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Policing and 
Equalities which sought their views on the draft Statement of Gambling Policy.

Under the terms of the Gambling Act 2001, the Council’s Statement of Gambling 
Policy had to be renewed every three years.  The current Statement came into 
effect on 31 January 2016. The revised Statement of Gambling Policy was 
required to be published and advertised by 3 January 2019. 

Prior to amending the policy for a further three year period, licensing authorities 
were required to carry out a consultation process. In addition to those it must 
consult by law, the Council had authority to include in the process any individuals 
or organisations it deemed appropriate.  The consultation began on 7 August 2018 
for six weeks to 18 September 2018.  A copy of the revised policy was attached as 
an appendix to the report.

The Committee were satisfied with the revised policy and noted that any further 
comments may be made before the deadline of 18 September 2018.

19. Outstanding Issues Report 

There were no outstanding issues. 

20. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved 

There were no other items of public business. 

21. Applications for the Grant/Suitability to hold Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Drivers' Licences 

RESOLVED that having considered the circumstances set out in the reports 
of the Deputy Chief Executive, Place, now submitted: 

(a) The application for grant of a Private Hire Operator’s Licence by Mr 
Lee Denny to operate ecars be deferred to a future meeting. 

(Note: Mr Denny attended the meeting in support of his application).

22. Any other items of private business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved 

There were no other items of private business. 

(Meeting closed at 10.45 am)

Page 2



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee (Hearing) 

held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 16 August 2018

Present:
Members:

Councillor J Birdi
Councillor J Clifford
Councillor P Hetherton (Chair)

Employees (by Directorate):
Place: D Cahalin-Heath, J Glover, F Samuda, C Sinclair

Public Business

6. Appointment of Chair 

Councillor Hetherton was appointed as Chair for the meeting. 

7. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

8. Exclusion of Press and Public 

RESOLVED that, under Section 1004(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the item of business below 
(Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a personal licence) on the grounds that 
the item involved the likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in 
Schedule 12A of that Act, in particular those paragraphs of Part 1 of the 
Schedule.

9. Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a Personal Licence 

The Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee considered an application for a new 
personal licence.

The Applicant had submitted an application for a personal licence on 28 March 
2018 under Section 117 of the Licensing Act 2003.  Under section 120(2)(d) the 
application could not be determined by Licensing Officers as the Applicant had 
been convicted of a relevant offence on 19 February 2018 for driving a motor 
vehicle with excess alcohol on 27 October 2017.  The Police had provided the 
Authority with an objection notice (which had not been withdrawn) stating that the 
granting of the personal licence to the Applicant would undermine the crime 
prevention objective as the conviction of 19 February 2018 was not spent in terms 
of conviction and the disqualification from driving.  

The Authority was thereafter required to hold a hearing to consider the objection 
received.

Page 3



– 2 –

The Licensing Officer presented the report in relation to the application for the 
grant of a personal licence.  The Licensing Officer confirmed that the rehabilitation 
period for the drink driving disqualification period was 5 years once the ban was 
lifted.  The rehabilitation period for the community order is 12 months from the 
date of conviction.  It was noted that the Applicant could reduce the driving 
disqualification period by undertaking a relevant driving course which in effect 
could reduce his disqualification by 22 weeks (ie. 1 week for each month of 
disqualification).
  
The Applicant confirmed when making representations that he had made a silly 
mistake and had to pay the price for it now.  He acknowledged that the Sub-
Committee could give him a personal licence or refuse the application and he 
would have to accept this.   He advised in terms of his conviction that he was at a 
family wedding for the day on 27 October 2017 and that he had been drinking all 
day.  The Applicant confirmed when questioned that he had started drinking at 
about 1pm on 27 October 2017 and that he had got anxious and although it was 
silly decided to leave the wedding and picked up his car keys and drove.  The 
Applicant was unable to confirm how much drink he had consumed at the time nor 
could he remember what the alcohol readings were at the time of the incident.  It 
was confirmed by the Applicant that he was a gin drinker and further that he had 
been drinking gin and wine (provided at the table) throughout the day before he 
left the wedding.  It was noted that the driving disqualification given of 22 months 
inferred that the alcohol in the applicant’s system was extremely high when 
considering the sentencing guidelines for Magistrates.  The Applicant confirmed 
that he was breathalysed on 2 occasions once at the time of the incident and also 
later at the police station.  He confirmed that both breathalysers were not working 
and as a consequence a urine specimen was taken from him. He did not recall the 
exact reading however now believed that it was about twice the amount allowed.

The Applicant confirmed that he had pleaded guilty to the offence on the first 
occasion and that he had been lucky as he was given credit for his timely guilty 
plea. He further recognised that the Court had been lenient with him as they had 
determined not to fine him or give him points on his licence but instead gave him a 
community order.  When asked about the circumstances of the police stopping 
him, the Applicant advised that he did not recall the incident as he had been drunk, 
he had crashed the vehicle and advised that the police had found him in a ditch. 
He had no recollection as to what had happened, the speed he was driving, how 
he got there or how the police had found him.  It was further noted by the Sub-
Committee that it was only upon being questioned that the Applicant disclosed the 
fact that he been involved in a crash and it was to his knowledge that no one else 
was involved or hurt.

The Applicant confirmed that he had not undertaken the driving course to date to 
reduce the disqualification period however he intended to book this course in 
January 2019 rather than do it now.

The Applicant was referred to his application form and it was queried why the 
Applicant had declared that he had a relevant conviction and thereafter denied it 
by signed declaration.  The Applicant confirmed that the form had been completed 
by his trainers CPL training in Birkenhead.  He confirmed that he had only partly 
read the form before signing it and therefore was not completely aware of the 

Page 4



– 3 –

contents or what he had signed.  The Applicant was asked if he was aware that he 
had a relevant conviction and the rehabilitation period(s) that applied to the 
offence.  The Applicant was unclear on this point.  He did however confirm that he 
had a job offer with “Stonegate” who wanted to ‘give him a pub’ and if he was 
refused his personal licence today he would probably lose his job.

The Applicant on a final note confirmed that he had passed his driving test in 
February 2015 hence had held his licence for around 2 years and 8 months at the 
time of the incident.

Mr Ian Tipton confirmed that the Police’s concern was that to grant the personal 
licence would undermine the crime prevention objective.  The personal licence 
should not be granted until the conviction for drink driving was spent i.e. until after 
from the disqualification from driving period had ended.

The Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee, having considered the Licensing 
Act 2003, the Home Office Section 182 Guidance, the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy, the Magistrates Court Sentencing Guidelines and the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 coupled with the representations of the 
Applicant and that of the Police; and having reviewed all the papers provided; 
resolved to refuse to the grant the Personal Licence as to do so would undermine 
the crime prevention objective.  

RESOLVED that the Licensing Sub-Committee, having heard all of the 
evidence from the parties, and having reviewed all of the papers provided in 
advance of the hearing, including those from objector decided to refuse to 
Grant the Personal Licence in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 for 
the following reasons:

1. The Sub Committee was satisfied upon hearing the representations of 
the Police and the Applicant that the Personal Licence should not be 
granted.  

2. The Applicant held a relevant conviction and the offence itself was a 
serious one which the Applicant did not appear to appreciate.

3. The Rehabilitation periods had not expired.
4. The Applicant confirmed that he had relied on his training providers to 

complete his application form without properly reading it which 
resulted in him making a false declaration on the form submitted. 

5. From the sentencing guidelines and the urine specimen taken from 
the Applicant (and the obligatory disqualification period of 22 months 
given); this indicated that the Applicant had a high alcohol reading.

6. The Applicant was selective in the evidence given especially when 
disclosing details of the incident of 27 October 2017 and had to be 
prompted most of the time before the Sub-Committee could ascertain 
the position.

7. The Applicant was aware of the Police’s objection and had made no 
effort to address the Sub-Committee’s concerns that the crime 
prevention objective would not be undermined if he was granted a 
personal licence.

8. Given the above, the Sub Committee was of the view that the Crime 
Prevention Objective would be undermined if the licence was granted. 

Page 5



– 4 –

10. Any Other Business 

There were no other items of business. 

(Meeting closed at 10.45 am)

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 7.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 8.2
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 8.3
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

Agenda Item 8.4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

Agenda Item 8.5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - 16-08-18

	7.1 Poor Food Hygiene Conditions at a Coventry Restaurant
	Appendix 1 Photographs for Committee Report 11.9.2018 Poor Hygiene Condions

	8.1 Review of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	8.2 Review of Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	8.3 Application for Grant of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	8.4 Review of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	8.5 Review of a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence

